
UHITSD 8TATJJ8 DI8TRZCT COURT DISTRICT OV COBNBCTICUT 
LYNN .:.AFRAZIER, on .behalf of herse.f. and all others simL'.<.:lrly situated, 

CIVIL NO. 3;96CV00301, 'Ie)', : 
PL', ,ntiff, 

v. 

. . 

SHA~~~ BANK CONNECTICUT, N.A. and 2,1':£ BUICK GMC TRUCk, INC.,: 
f ' 

De~: ·Tndants • ': .¥ . 
8IlLING oll fLAXIiTll"1 ~':l'I9N roB Cwe CBBTIIX~:&TI.aI 

{his is an action :for dam::.tges allQging violation~ o,~ tha 
Truth _n Lending Act, 15 U.S.C. ,1640 and Conn. Gen. stat. §36a-
616 §.1c seg, CIfTIUtl ) J the Connecticut Unfair Trade Pract.tces Act 
(fiCUTPA"), Conn. Gen. stat. §4~~-110a !it legf.-I and the Cotilrleot:i.cut 
Rataj _ Installment Sales Finan<:inq Act, Conn. Gen. Stat. i§ 36a-

The plaintiff, Lynn LaFrazier, claims 
th.at I, H~ defendants, Shawmut Bank Connecticut, N.A. (Sha.li·~ut) and 
ZeQ Su ck GMC Truck, In~. (Zee Buick), violated the TlLAp CUTPA 
and RISFA by improperly ,excluding charges for vendor's single 
intere;::t insurance (nVSIDI) from certain auto finance char':le.s. z 
The plaint:.iff now moves for class certification. Becausll:he 
court f nncludes that the plaintiff'S action is barred by the 1995 

.. ,' U.S.C. l640(c) provides·, in relevant part: ~!'arges or premiums for insu.rance, written in connectioun w~th any consumer credit transaction, against loss ot or damage to property against liability arlsinq out of the oia">ership or use of property. shall be included in tne f l.nance charge unless a clE:ar and specific statement i.n W.':' itinq is furnished by teO's creditor to the person to wJ;,t)ltl the credit is extended. ~ settinq forth the cost ~.f ttw insurance .. ~ 

2 The plaintiff also alleges 1:hat the defendants violatE ~. RISFA by fail ,ng 1:0 deliver the 'lSI ir.suranee policy to the pla{ ~tift. 

... 



... 

_. , ____ , 1 ___ -'-" 

'I'lLA <Amendments, specifically 15 U.S.C. § 1649, the pla1.tiff's 
motioH for class certifioation is denied and the matter ereby 

dismil3sed. 

Examination of tha complaint, pleadings, exhibits and 
affidavits attached thereto rel/eals the followinq material facts. 
On March 14, 1995, the plaintil'f purchased a used Buick froll the 
defenuant Z~e Buick GMC Truck, Inc. ( .. Zae Buick'·,. The! J.ainti!! 
tinan('fld her purchaae, and in 00 doing', signed aratail 
insta 1 1 ment contract/truth in lending disclosure statemer,,, (the 
"contl'ftct"), issued. by the defelndant, Shawmut Bank of 
Connec;t icut, N.A. ("Shawmut .. ).:3 The contract contained a $50.00 
charge .for vendor's single intE~rest insurance ("VSr") covaraqe, 
"supplied and arranged for" by defendant shawmut.' 

Or', February 26, 1996, the plaintiff commenced this a~tion 
allegir),'l that the VSI pol icy issued by ShaWJ11ut provided t:"veraqe 
for r,,:, oS:iJession insurance, and that therefore, shawmut I E~ 
"instrt1 ct[ions] [to] car dealers'· to exclude the $50.00 VS·I 

J ']' \I.~ plaintiff alleges and ~;hac.nnut and Zee Buick conca ,'!, that. "Shawmut is engaged in the business of •• -purchasing inEJ'tullment contra:#L:S executed by consumers to finance the purchase t'f motor • vehiclkh." Pursuant to that business, the plaintiff allege that .. (Zse Ettick) submitted credit applica.tions to ShaWDlut for 8JlprovalJ Shawmut approved the applications, (Zee Buick] compl·eted retail installment contracts in accordance vith Shawmut's instructions on fonoe provided by ShawrAut, and Shawmut purchased thE: retail install'llent contracts fre,m (Zae Buick] .•• 

4 "'('{land.or's sing,Le-intereat in§uranc~ (or 'VSI') ~ ,. [refers) ... to [the] ,Irotect.ion of tangible p.roperty 89ains'.; normal property damage... Official Federal Resezve Board Staff )mmentary to RegUlation ~ (implementing TlLA), ell C.F.R. part 2;11', Supp. I) (emphasis add':ld). 

... 



prem.i lIn from the finance charc;re. violated the TlLA. 5 

In her complaint, the pIs.intif! seeks to certify a ':::la88 

consi$.tinq of all persons: 1) who "entered into a reta!:, 
installment contract that 1s dated on or a.fter a date one year 
prior to (February 26, 1995] and [that] was assigned to Shawmut;" 
2) wl:lC~,se "transaction was docuDlented as a consumer oredit 
transa'tCtioni 3) who was "charged for VSI: and 4) whose "'lSI 
char 9':: was included in the amo·.lnt financed and/or excluo'; ,{ from 

the t;, ~nc. charge." 6, 

DISCOBSIOR 

l:, :r:n'lI::' claim 
I if",_ September 30, 1995, allendments to t.he TJ:LA, 15 U.S.C. 

§ 1605',et aeg,~ Pub. L. 104-29 1 place certain limitations on 
liabilityw 15 U.S.C. § 1649 pl'ovides, in relevam: part, that: 

Fqr any consumer credit tl'ansaction subject to this sq,bchapter that is consuDllI,ated before September 30 , 1,,1;5, a creditor or any assigned of a creditor shall have no civil, administrative, or criminal liability 
~.ulder this subchapter for .•. 
(~)any disclosure relating to the finance charge il:ftJ;)osed with respect to the transaction if the amoullt~ ot." percentage actually disclosed--

CA) may be treated as accurate for purposes of this title if the amount disclosed as the 

s l\:\though II [slome cOlupreherlsive insurance pOlices ma}" include a varie~y of additional coveraql!s, such as repossession inliYrance and hol"ar-in-due cO\.lrse coverage, (t]hese types of coverage go not ponetitttte s.lngli-1nteryt 1nsu,~ .... and premiums for them 42 not Q.\liJ.1ifX' for exclusion frolll the. finance cha:rqe •.•. If offioial Federal Reserve Board Staff Commentary to Regulation Z, (12 C.F.R. part 22t$ SUppa I) (emphasis addE!d). 

6 'l'tqase criteria apply to tl'le plaintiff's federal TIU, claim. 

... 

The tWeJiidcUtional criteria for the state claims include: 1jpersons with a1pntract elated on or aftez' February 26, 1993: and 2) ~Grson. ... whose contract lists a dealer with a Connecticut addrese • 

. 3 



.. ' 

finance charqe does not vary from the actual finance char96 by mere than $200; 

15 U.~.C. § 1649. 

The 1995 'I'ILA amendments ,includes exceptions to its 
liab.llity limitations. Speciftcally, 15 U.S.c. § 1649 (t· 

provides that: 

Subsection (a) of this action shall not apply to--(1) any individual action' or coun~erclaim brought under this subchapter which was filed before June 1, 1995 2) any class action brou1}ht under this subchapter for Tirhich a final order certi,~yinq a claAs was entered before January 1, 1995i 
3) the named individual plaintiffs in any class action :tr:ouqht under this subchapter which was filed before June 1, 1995; or 
4) any consumer credit tl.:ansaction with respect to which a timely notice of rescission was sent to the cJ:"editor before June 1, 1~195. 

15 U.s.c. § 1649. 

lr. the instant case, filed on February 26, 1996, the 
plaint,lff alleqes that in her ~,:arch 14, 1995 retail installment 

I contra:t., shawmut and Zee Buic~. improperly excluded the $50.00 
charqe for VSI coverage from the finance charge. Because the 
TlIA al,;endments preclude holding a creditor liable for finance 
charge disclosures that v'ary from the actual finance chal-' ,e by 
less an $200.00, and because no exception to 15 U.S.C. ' 1649 
applief~ in this case, the court concludes that the plaint~lf's 
motion for class certification lRust be denied. 

U. state Claims 

It is axiomatic that when ,tIl federal claims are eli::n tnated 
prior to trial, a federal court ,should decline to exercise 

.. 
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_V1:';,J~ .. o 

jurisdiction oVer any remaining state law claims. ~arnegle­

Mellon uniYersity y. Cqhill, 484 U.S. 343, 350 (1988); DiLAura Y. 
fOYer AuthQrity of New Y9.&, 982 F.2d 73, 80 (2d Cir. :992). 

CO.(~LUSIOJJ 

For the aforementioned reasons, the motion for class 
certification (document no. 6) is denied and the case is t·.areby 
dismissed. 

so ORDERED, this3~day of July, 1996, at Hartt:ord, 
Conneoticut. 

A:lfred 
United 

5 

Covello 
ates District Judge 

... 
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